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JONES: Did you have any training in the life sciences? 1 

RESPESS: I have a Ph.D. in chemistry, organic chemistry, but that’s as close to 2 

training in the life sciences as I pretend to, apart from on the job training. 3 

JONES: After you got your Ph.D., you attended law school? 4 

RESPESS: Correct. Well, you want a more complete biography? I was an air force 5 

officer and I worked in a chemistry laboratory in the Air Force at Wright Patterson 6 

Air Force Base, called the Air Force materials laboratory, and then after that, I went to 7 

law school at George Washington University in Washington, D.C., in their evening 8 

program, and I worked for Phillips Petroleum Company’s patent department in the 9 

daytime, and after finishing law school, I became a law clerk on the old U.S. Board of 10 

Customs and Patent Appeals, and that is now the United States Court for the Federal 11 

Circuit, by virtue of some reorganization of the federal courts, and after that tenure, I 12 

went up to Lyon & Lyon, a patent law firm in Los Angeles, where I stayed until 1983. I 13 

left in 1983 to become general counsel at Hybritech, and sometime around 1980, I 14 

began legal work, mostly patent work and transactional work for Hybritech in private 15 

practice, and they asked me to be general counsel, and so, in ‘83, I did that. So, that’s 16 

how I came to be in the biotech business in sort of a shorthand way, I guess. 17 

JONES: Right, and Lyon & Lyon specializes in patent law? 18 

RESPESS: Right. Lyon & Lyon, my first introduction to biotechnology patent law, if 19 

you will -- there was a partner at Lyon & Lyon named Tom Kiley, and he was 20 

recommended by a firm on the East Coast, which probably regrets having done that, 21 

to Bob Swanson, who was the founder of Genentech, with Herb Boyer, and so Tom 22 

Kiley and I worked on the early Genentech patent applications in making 23 



Interview conducted by Mark Jones on May 9, 1997 

recombinant products. Tom was actually counsel to Hybritech, and he left Lyon & 24 

Lyon to become general counsel of Genentech, and I sort of inherited Hybritech from 25 

him, when it was a very small company located at rented facilities from the La Jolla 26 

Cancer Research Foundation, I think that’s called the Burnham Institute now, so I 27 

guess I was I lucky. 28 

JONES: This was ‘79, ‘80? 29 

RESPESS: It was 1980 when I first, I’m pretty sure it was early 1980 when I first 30 

became involved with Hybritech. I remember meeting Howard Greene and Ted 31 

Birndorf at an early meeting. That was before Tom Adams came, so it was some time 32 

before Tom Adams. If you know exactly when Tom Adams came there, I became 33 

involved with them a few months before that. That’s my recollection. 34 

JONES: And what kind of work were you doing for Hybritech at that time? 35 

RESPESS: Very little, when I first got on board. I came down to see them to be 36 

introduced. Tom Kiley and I came down when he left, and we just sort of had an 37 

introduction, you know, Here I am to help you if you need help.’ But I never received 38 

any, as my recollection, I don’t remember receiving any requests to do anything for 39 

them until Tom Adams came, which is how I peg it as being somewhere not too long 40 

before Tom Adams came along. 41 

JONES: And this was the TANDEM? 42 

RESPESS: The TANDEM assay patent application. He called me and introduced 43 

himself, this is my recollection, and said that he thought Hybritech had made an 44 

invention and he wanted me to come down and see him. And I came down and I met 45 

him and Gary David and Bob Wang, and some others, and we talked about the 46 

TANDEM assay. And so we shortly thereafter filed a patent application on that. 47 

JONES: Hybritech was founded on non-proprietary technology. This was the first 48 

patent? 49 

RESPESS: Correct. 50 

JONES: And this was unusual, right? These days it would be very difficult to raise 51 

capital for a company... 52 
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RESPESS: I think that’s probably true. The only company I can think of locally that 53 

might have done that was Isis Corporation, and that may have been done largely on 54 

the reputation of Stan Crooke, who had been head of research at old Smith-Kline, 55 

and maybe on the strength of his reputation, raised money in the area of, what do 56 

they call it? Hybridization, gene hybridization technology for therapeutic 57 

applications, and I don’t recall that they had any proprietary technology when they 58 

started out, but they’ve obviously acquired some since then, but I think that’s 59 

generally true, what you say there. Most companies are started on the basis of 60 

acquiring a proprietary position as opposed to, ‘Here’s a technology that we think will 61 

be useful, give us some money to see if we can figure out something to do with it.’ But 62 

it may have been a reflection of the more go-go days of biotechnology, where people 63 

were still enthusiastic about the possibilities, when they were just beginning to be 64 

understood, and it was maybe easier to raise money on an idea, certainly easier than 65 

it would be today. 66 

JONES: Was it the TANDEM patent that was challenged by Monoclonal Antibodies, 67 

Inc.? 68 

RESPESS: Well, we sued them for infringement, and they challenged it as part of 69 

their defense. Yes, that’s correct. 70 

JONES: And when you were putting this together, you came and talked to the team 71 

that had invented this thing -- where do you go from there? How do they 72 

communicate the technology to you? Do you sit down in a room and they tell you... 73 

RESPESS: Yeah. We sat down in a room. It was in a trailer, a temporary trailer pulled 74 

up in the parking lot of the La Jolla Cancer Research Foundation. I remember 75 

meeting Tom Adams and I think he sort of laid it out for me, and then I met for some 76 

time with Bob Wang, and I’m not sure who else I met with at that time. It was very 77 

likely Gary David, but I do remember meeting Bob Wang, who had some summary of 78 

the technology that was a useful explanation of the technology, how it worked and 79 

what the objectives were, and so forth. I seem to recall that. That’s such a long time 80 

ago, I’m not absolutely sure. 81 

JONES: How much do you have to know about the technology? 82 

RESPESS: I think, fortunately, the lawyer doesn’t have to know, and shouldn’t be 83 

expected to know as much as the people who invented it, but my own experience -- 84 
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Tom Kiley and I and another partner, a senior partner at Lyon & Lyon, had tried a 85 

case a few years before. I hadn’t tried the case, but I’d been involved in a lawsuit a few 86 

years before on immunoassay technology. Abbott Laboratories sued a small company 87 

in LA for infringing its so-called ‘Osria’ patent, which was a patent on an 88 

immunoassay for detecting hepatitis, and so I’d had sort of an introduction, trial by 89 

ordeal, into immunoassay technology. I won’t say it’s trivial, obviously, because it’s 90 

much too complicated, but it was relatively easy to understand how monoclonal 91 

antibodies could be used in an immunoassay based upon the fact that I had some 92 

prior acquaintance with immunoassay technology. 93 

JONES: As you’re putting this together, is there a lot of back and forth between the 94 

scientists and the lawyers? 95 

RESPESS: There can be. It depends upon what information you need. Again, my 96 

recollection is that Bob Wang had put together a pretty extensive summary. I don’t 97 

know whether it was hand written or not, but I remember that I had some 98 

documents that, I think, Bob Wang had prepared, which pretty much laid it out.  99 

There was some back and forth, and I’m sure there were some phone calls, but I don't 100 

remember that we were constantly on the phone, rewriting the thing or anything like 101 

that. It was a simpler process, maybe because it was their first patent application, 102 

maybe because Tom Adams is the kind of person who insists on that sort of thing, 103 

but I don’t recall it as requiring a lot of effort on my part, except to put it in the form 104 

that a patent application would have because of a fairly extensive write-up that I’d 105 

received from Hybritech. 106 

JONES: And after, did you do additional work for them before they asked you to 107 

come on board? 108 

RESPESS: In the course of the next several years, between roughly early 1980 and 109 

October ‘83, Hybritech did a number of transactions with companies and universities 110 

and so forth, and I represented them, to some extent, in those transactions, and also 111 

we did some additional patenting things. I don’t remember the extent of it, but 112 

sometime in that process, they asked me to be their general counsel, and after some 113 

considerable deliberation, because I was a partner at Lyon & Lyon, and I wasn’t sure I 114 

wanted to give that up, that lifetime tenure, but ultimately I was persuaded to do 115 

that, and obviously, in retrospect, I’m quite happy that I did. 116 

JONES: Who worked to persuade you, and how did they do that? 117 
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RESPESS: Well, there were a number of people. Ted Greene was influential, Tom 118 

Adams, and Howard Birndorf, were the three that spoke to me the most about it, but 119 

ultimately even Brook Byers on the board, and I expect you’ve heard of Brook by now. 120 

I met with Brook at some kind of trade meeting in Orange County, and he went to 121 

great length to explain to me how, no matter how hard I worked in private practice, 122 

there were only some many hours to the day, and the way to become a successful 123 

person, financially, was to have an equity position. I thought I was a fairly 124 

sophisticated person, but I must confess, I had never thought very much about 125 

making money by owning stock, so it was an interesting insight to companies like 126 

Hybritech. By that time, there had been some history with Genentech, and so I think 127 

I understood that, conceptually, it could be extremely profitable. I didn’t go for it just 128 

for the money. I actually came to appreciate having, from the nature of my private 129 

practice, that one of the things that I enjoyed about working with a company like 130 

Hybritech, as they progressed as a company, is that you get a great deal of satisfaction 131 

out of participating in building a company like that. And I was at sort of a crossroads 132 

where I either became a litigator, or I became something else, and I don’t know how 133 

familiar you are with the litigation process, but it is not a friendly game, and most 134 

lawsuits are settled before they go to trial, and usually because the attorneys on both 135 

sides have probably worn out their clients’ willingness to continue spending money 136 

to fight this gargantuan battle, so I never felt as good about the outcome, even when I 137 

was on the side that thought it prevailed, as I did in a situation where you actually 138 

work proactively with people to bring about things that everyone wants to do, and 139 

that’s always a better feeling, psychologically. I got more psychological reward out of 140 

it, let’s put it that way. 141 

JONES: You were at a crossroads -- is this a natural career path in a firm like Lyon & 142 

Lyon? 143 

RESPESS: Yeah, I think so. Most law firms, most patent law firms -- well, I won’t 144 

speak for all patent law firms -- a firm like Lyon & Lyon, as you grow in the firm, you 145 

can go in two directions. You can become a person who litigates extensively or 146 

exclusively, or you become someone who doesn’t litigate at all, and the most visibility 147 

in firm like Lyon & Lyon, and the greatest prestige, is gained by being a litigating 148 

lawyer, the courtroom, and all that sort of stuff. And I think it’s kind of hard to mix 149 

the two and be an expert at both, so, it was a crossroads for me. I’m not sure that 150 

everyone feels the same sort of, that they reach a crossroads, but that’s how I looked 151 

at it. 152 
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JONES: So you decided to go to Hybritech. You had faith in the people there. Was 153 

this after they had products on the market? 154 

RESPESS: I think they had just introduced, or were about to introduce, they had 155 

some research products on the market, OK. There were certainly those kinds of 156 

products. I’m not exactly sure when their test for, they had a test, the first application 157 

of the technology, I think was for detecting the antibodies that are produced as a 158 

result of, it was an IgE test is was it was, as I recall, the first commercial test, and I 159 

don’t recall exactly authorized to be sold by the FDA, but it might very well have been 160 

coincidental with that. Again, I think I enjoyed what I was doing with them. I liked 161 

the people a lot, and then, as I said, I’d come to realize that this had some financial 162 

upside, it gave me a lot of personal satisfaction, so I was gradually persuaded that I 163 

ought to try that, and so I did. 164 

JONES: Did you perceive much risk in the financial upside, the potential financial 165 

upside? 166 

RESPESS: Yeah, I think I perceived a risk. I think the only thing I can say about it, the 167 

only concern I had, and this is sort of ironic in retrospect, I suppose, is that Hybritech 168 

might be acquired, and I spoke to Ted Greene, and I said, ‘Well, what happens to me 169 

if Hybritech is acquired?’ And he said, ‘That’s nothing you ever have to worry about. 170 

We’re far too expensive to be acquired.’ And I think I came in late ‘83, and I believe by 171 

the end of the next year, we were talking to Eli Lilly about being acquired, although 172 

we went through a fairly long period before that happened. I sometimes say that my 173 

seat was hardly warm when the acquisition of Hybritech became a reality. So, the 174 

only concern I really had, I recognized that there was some risk, was that Hybritech 175 

would be acquired, and I would have just given up a lucrative partnership in a major 176 

patent law firm, to come to a place where I proceeded to get the boot almost 177 

immediately. But I wasn’t hurt financially, so it did happen, but in retrospect, again, it 178 

didn’t hurt me financially. 179 

JONES: Did you know about the Lilly talks prior to them sealing the deal? 180 

RESPESS: Oh, sure. I was one of the people who had to be involved because there’s a 181 

lot of due diligence that a company like Lilly would do on patents and other things 182 

that affected the legal department, so I was involved in the process. 183 

JONES: But it wasn’t common knowledge around Hybritech at the time? 184 
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RESPESS: Well, I don’t, I would be, I don’t know how well those kind of secrets are 185 

kept. I don’t recall. I think we kept it fairly close to the vest, right. It was a well-kept 186 

secret, but maybe the people who heard the secret were smart enough to keep their 187 

mouths shut around people whom they knew would be upset if they knew what was 188 

going on. 189 

JONES: A number of people have told me that when they were recruited to Hybritech 190 

by Brook Byers that one of the things he told them was, you know, if this doesn’t 191 

work out, we have lots of companies, we’ll find you a place in one of those. Did he say 192 

anything like that to you? 193 

RESPESS: I don’t recall Brook saying something like that. I think I came to realize 194 

that on my own, and I’ve actually told people that myself when I’ve tried to help 195 

recruit people, or when I’ve talked to people that I wasn’t recruiting directly, but I 196 

was one of the people that spoke to them. My experience has been that there is a 197 

shortage. There is no shortage of companies, but there is a shortage of talented 198 

people, and that as long as your performance in a start-up company is not responsible 199 

for its failure, and you do a good job, I think that, in fact, there’s a high likelihood 200 

that you would be perceived as a valuable commodity, and wouldn’t have difficulty in 201 

finding another opportunity. I don’t believe that the experience that people like I’ve 202 

had in San Diego, for example, means you’re going to plucked out of relative 203 

obscurity in the biotechnology industry and given a major responsibility in a 204 

pharmaceutical company. On the other hand, I think there’s a lot of lateral 205 

possibilities among the biotech companies, and I’m not interested in living in New 206 

Jersey anyway, so the fact that I’m not going to end up as the head of the legal 207 

department at Merck or Roche, or someplace like that doesn’t bother me a whole lot. 208 

JONES: At Hybritech, were you involved in the in-licensing, and out-licensing, and 209 

all that kind of stuff? 210 

RESPESS: Sure. Howard Birndorf, in the early days -- when I say early days, I mean 211 

even before and after I left -- Hybritech had business development responsibilities 212 

and I worked with Howard a lot, and then on some of the major transactions, 213 

generally speaking, with David Hale, to develop the contracts, and so forth, that 214 

would be involved in collaborative research with companies that we did at that time, 215 

J&J was already done, but Toyo Soda in Japan, and some of the other transactions that 216 

we did. 217 
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JONES: And how was it working with the Hybritech team? Howard Birndorf, for 218 

instance, just a few years earlier, was lab tech with no experience in any of this kind 219 

of stuff? 220 

RESPESS: Well, Howard is a very bright guy, and gifted, and I think that that was a 221 

niche that, in my view, was one that Howard just naturally fitted. I think he was 222 

probably not well-suited for, in the long-term at any rate, to be a career researcher, 223 

and I think his track record is adequate. He doesn’t need my endorsement to validate 224 

that. He’s proven to be very effective at sniffing out technologies, and so forth. One of 225 

Howard’s endearing qualities is that he’s very persistent, and by having someone like 226 

that, who has a nose for these sort of things, and also has the quality of being 227 

persistent, deals get done, and I think that’s one of his really great talents. At 228 

Hybritech, the major transactions that I was involved in, however, were handled by 229 

David Hale. It’s not uncommon in a company like Hybritech that the CEO deals more 230 

directly with the major transactions, and the second level of transaction is handled by 231 

the business or corporate development people, so Hybritech was on exception in that 232 

regard. So, I worked a lot with Howard, I worked a lot with David, depending on what 233 

the particular transaction was. 234 

JONES: Do you remember particular projects that were crucial, or particularly 235 

significant for the growth of the company? 236 

RESPESS: Well, yeah, there would be some of those, and, let me see if I can think 237 

back to that particular period of time. One of the things that, and this has changed 238 

over the years, but the traditional wisdom, or conventional wisdom, I don’t think it’s 239 

changed that much, is that, as these companies evolve, it takes enormous amounts of 240 

capital to develop pharmaceutical products. You need to constantly reinforce in the 241 

mind of the investment community, even before you go public, that you’re a winner, 242 

and that they should invest in your company at some appropriate time, depending on 243 

what their investment objectives are, and what normally happens is, you get some 244 

seed money, and then you use that money to develop some proof of principle, and 245 

then when you do that, you get some additional financing. One of the things that was 246 

always considered important then, and maybe to a lesser extent is till important 247 

today, is you get some collaborative arrangement with a corporate partner as a 248 

validation of your technology and so forth, the notion being that major 249 

pharmaceutical companies would not invest with these companies if there wasn’t 250 

some belief on their part that the technology was conceptually sound, even though it 251 
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may not have born all the fruits yet, and so forth. So, companies tend to go through a 252 

series of these transactions, and Hybritech was no exception. In the early days, one 253 

was done with Johnson & Johnson, and later there was one done with a Japanese 254 

company, and for some reason, I’m drawing a blank here. And later with Toyo Soda, 255 

another Japanese company, and that kind of a process evolves before and after you 256 

take the company public. The more deals you do that suggest that you’re a winner, 257 

you like to put out press releases, it’s one way of keeping the company in the news, so 258 

to speak, where the investors see that the company’s making progress, and you hope, 259 

therefore, to stimulate interest in the company’s stock, otherwise it sort of languishes, 260 

and if there’s no interest in it, then of course, there’s no place, it doesn’t go up in 261 

value, so to speak. 262 

JONES: Do you recall in discussions about, you which deals to pursue, or whether to 263 

pursue a deal, whether the primarily goal was this, establishing credibility, even more 264 

than getting the money? 265 

RESPESS: I don’t know that it was ever that establishing the marketplace 266 

identification was ever the primary reason, but it was more often than not, more than 267 

a trivial reason. We didn’t do, as far as I was concerned, bad business deals just to 268 

keep the company’s name out there, and there was always a legitimate business 269 

objective that was being pursued, but that was always, it was a necessity to do that. I 270 

think every company would have liked to have been able to raise all of the money it 271 

needed to develop all of its technology, and keep it all for itself, but that’s just 272 

unrealistic. As a result, this is one of the things that you have to do, and the only 273 

thing that I can say that’s market-driven about it is, you might very well do it earlier 274 

in the development than you would otherwise like, because you don’t have enough 275 

money to bring it, to maximize its value before you license it out. The more 276 

improvements you make to the technology, the closer you have, the closer you are to 277 

a product, for example, the more you can sell it for, because there’s less risk, 278 

obviously, to the person who picks up the technology and take sit the rest of the way, 279 

or pays you to develop it the rest of the way, which is more common. So, that is a 280 

compromise -- how much do we spend on this technology before we try to find a 281 

partner. But that’s as far as I can recall, the only significant decision that was made 282 

that was motivated by the market for the technology and how investors might 283 

perceive it down the road. 284 
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JONES: When the Monoclonal Antibodies, Inc. Suit came along, did that sort of 285 

change your working routine? 286 

RESPESS: Well, it had an impact on my life, obviously, but most of the work was 287 

done by the outside law firm, my old law firm, Lyon & Lyon, so I was involved in 288 

several ways, one, I wanted to be kept up, be involved enough to know what was 289 

going on. My recollection is that even at that time, I had a junior attorney working for 290 

me, I think it was Ronnie Sherman who was there at that time, and she liaised with 291 

outside attorneys, in terms of facilitating doing discovery in response to discovery 292 

requests that were made to us by Monoclonal Antibodies’s attorneys, and then, of 293 

course, I had to be witness in the trial, because I was involved in obtaining the patent 294 

that was ultimately used to sue Monoclonal Antibodies, and so forth. So, it had a 295 

significant impact on my life, and I remember, I was out of town, I think I was out of 296 

town, when the news came that we had lost at the District Court, so I don’t think I 297 

was a very happy camper at that time, but I recall that the board was very supportive, 298 

particularly Tom Perkins, who had a lot more experience than the management did, 299 

actually, in terms of the rough and tumble of business, and was not at all, I’m sure he 300 

was disappointed, but not dismayed, and we obviously felt just justified to spend 301 

additional money on appeal, and that turned out to work in our favor, so it’s had its 302 

up and downs, and impact on my life, but I believe that sometimes inside attorneys 303 

muck around too much in lawsuits that are handled by outside counsel, having been 304 

a litigating attorney myself, I think I had a better appreciation than most about how 305 

complex and difficult that is, and that you can’t be a dilettante in the litigation arena, 306 

and if you pick the appropriate outside counsel in whom you have confidence, I don’t 307 

think you should spend a lot of time second guessing what they do, and I know that 308 

there are some naturally economies that you want to realize, but I don’t think that 309 

that’s the place you want to save money, either, in the sense that you go through 310 

strict cost accounting of what the risk/benefit ratio is. Once you’ve made the decision 311 

to sue, it is not entirely out of your control, how much you’re going to spend, but you 312 

have to be prepared to spend a lot of money, and again, I think that most inside 313 

counsel probably fret more about the budget than they should, and if that’s their 314 

concern, they probably shouldn’t have gotten into the lawsuit in the first place. 315 

Anyway, that’s easy to say when things turn out right. Had it turned out badly, in the 316 

final analysis, I’m not sure how I would have felt about it, but I did not spend a lot of 317 

my personal time on it, at least on a daily basis, or on subsequent ones that like 318 

Hybritech pursued, including an anti-trust suit against Abbott Laboratories. 319 
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JONES: Well, these are potentially big problems for small companies. How much of 320 

Hybritech’s strategic planning involved these kinds of contingencies? 321 

RESPESS: Well, we talked a lot about it within the management group. I think, well, 322 

once the so- called TANDEM patent issued, we deliberated a lot about how we would 323 

like to deal with that patent. Should we keep it all to ourselves, and use it maybe a s a 324 

business tool in some niche areas to exclusively license some people, let’s say, or work 325 

with a partner, or should we make the technology available generally, and therefore 326 

avoid, maybe avoid, the necessity of having to litigate? And we ultimately decided 327 

that we would make the TANDEM patent available to anyone who was willing to pay 328 

a certain amount for it. We actually wrote letters to companies, and so forth, and 329 

with one or two exceptions, as I recall, there were no takers for that license. DuPont 330 

was the major exception, and we did a somewhat, we did something of a deal with 331 

American Dade, which I think was a division of, not American, American something 332 

or other. And American Dade developed monoclonal antibody based products on a 333 

special format. We offered licenses to people like Abbott Laboratories and others, and 334 

they didn’t take the license, so, sooner or later, you have to make a decision on 335 

whether you’re going to allow people to infringe your patent if you have one, or put it 336 

at risk and sue them, and the most advanced company, and the one who portrayed 337 

itself as being a Hybritech-like company, was Monoclonal Antibodies, Inc., and so, we 338 

felt we had no choice once the decision was made that we had to enforce the patent, 339 

to go after Monoclonal Antibodies, Inc. 340 

JONES: Who was principally involved in these deliberations? You, David Hale, Ted 341 

Greene? 342 

RESPESS: And the board. It was discussed by the board. 343 

JONES: This was ‘84, ‘85, it was getting close to... 344 

RESPESS: I think it was ‘84. I came to Hybritech in ‘83, so it couldn’t have been in ‘83, 345 

it had to be ‘84 or ‘85, and then Hybritech was acquired in ‘86 as I recall so, it had to 346 

be around ‘84, when we sued Monoclonal Antibodies, Inc., I believe. 347 

JONES: So, the Lilly deal gets signed, and then what happens? What happens to you? 348 

RESPESS: Like everyone else in the senior management at Hybritech, I agreed to stay 349 

on for some period of time. I told Lilly’s management that I didn’t feel that I had a 350 
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long-term interest in Hybritech, and they were a very understanding company. I 351 

think they were a fine company to deal with, but I had gone from being the chief legal 352 

officer in a small company to another attorney, although I was still general counsel at 353 

Hybritech, in a large company, and I would not have left my partnership at Lyon & 354 

Lyon to become what I had become. And I told them that if there came a time in the 355 

course of this period of time where I agreed to stay on, where they wanted to bring on 356 

one of their people, I would feel, I would not be upset. I felt that I had other 357 

opportunities that I could pursue, including going back into private practice, if not 358 

with my old firm, then with another firm. And during, I think about eight or nine 359 

months after the acquisition of Hybritech, they decided to bring on, they wanted to 360 

bring on one of their young attorneys named Kevin O’Malley, who had been in one of 361 

the other subsidiary companies, does CardioPacemaker Inc. Ring a bell? Anyway, I 362 

think that was the name of the company. They had a company that made cardiac 363 

pacemakers, I think in Minnesota, and they decided to bring him on to Hybritech as 364 

general counsel, and there was a transition period in which he came in and I stayed in 365 

for a period of time to help in the transition, and because we had become involved in 366 

a lawsuit against Abbott Laboratories for violation of anti-trust laws by Abbott, and 367 

also because we were considering suing Abbott for infringing the so-called TANDEM 368 

patent, and another patent as it related to one of their little rapid diagnostic tests that 369 

competed with Hybritech’s ICON product. I stayed on for a period of time, which was 370 

about three or four months, I think. And I left and became general counsel at Gen-371 

Probe, because Howard Birndorf and Tom Adams had left about a year before and 372 

started that company with David Kohne. 373 

JONES: Right, and why did pick Gen-Probe? Did you have other opportunities in 374 

particular that you were... 375 

RESPESS: Yes. I had a number of other opportunities. I think it’s fairly obvious, it 376 

should be fairly obvious, intuitively obvious almost, as to why I went to Gen-Probe. I 377 

had come again to a logical palace, a crossroads, in my career, OK, by virtue of the 378 

acquisition by Lilly, and having let Lilly know that I was interested in staying long-379 

term, and then, in effect, saying, ‘OK, we’re ready to replace you with someone.,’ and 380 

they were willing to give me an appropriate settlement, a severance, if you will, I’ll 381 

say, not settlement, but severance, which I was happy to receive, so Tom...so anyway, 382 

Tom and Howard had actually, they knew that when Lilly acquired Hybritech that I 383 

probably wouldn’t want to stay long-term, and they asked me to consider Gen-Probe, 384 

and I did, and at the appropriate time, I left Hybritech and moved over to Gen-Probe. 385 
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JONES: And again, you had stock options, this is part of the deal? 386 

RESPESS: No, in those days, we were doing something called restricted stock -- 387 

junior common. No, junior common had come to an end by that time, and I believe I 388 

purchased restricted, so-called restricted common stock, and not stock options. Stock 389 

options became fairly common in biotech later. In the early days of companies, when 390 

you can justify a low price for the common stock, people tend to buy it outright at a 391 

few cents a share, rather than have an option at a few cents a share, because there are 392 

financial reasons, well, there are tax reasons to do it that way. 393 

JONES: But you had a piece of Gen-Probe. 394 

RESPESS: I had a piece of Gen-Probe, yeah. 395 

JONES: And, so you’re doing basically the same kind of work there? 396 

RESPESS: Yeah. Very little changed in terms of the overall responsibilities. I did 397 

become, I think the only difference that I can think of then was I became Corporate 398 

Secretary of Gen- Probe, whereas at Hybritech, I had not been. Tim Wollaeger had 399 

been Corporate Secretary there. He had been at Hybritech longer. He came earlier 400 

than I did. It didn’t even occur to me that that was something I might do, or even 401 

have an interest in, so I never considered trying to do a place coup and take over that 402 

responsibility from Tim. 403 

JONES: And you hadn’t thought about this going to Gen-Probe? 404 

RESPESS: Well, that’s something to talk about. Gen-Probe had a much less, much 405 

smaller, less...it was a much smaller company than Hybritech was when I came, and 406 

the management group wasn’t as deep. And we talked about it, I don’t remember 407 

how we came up with it, we talked about it and I agreed to be Corporate Secretary, 408 

but being Corporate Secretary is not a very time-consuming thing in a private 409 

company. It becomes more important when the company goes public, and at that 410 

time, Gen-Probe was a private company, and so I didn’t mind. I was probably 411 

interested in the responsibility, and I certainly didn’t mind taking it on, and it’s not a 412 

huge effort in any event, as long as the company is private. It’s only when the 413 

company goes public and you have public shareholders, and you’re filing SEC reports, 414 

and so forth, that the Corporate Secretary function becomes much of a responsibility 415 

at all, frankly. 416 
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JONES: Did the patent position of the Gen-Probe technology -- was this basically the 417 

same kind of deal as at Hybritech? Or were there particular problems there that you 418 

ran into? 419 

RESPESS: Well, there were some, I don’t remember all the problems, it’s still too 420 

long ago. There was more of the traditional underpinning at Gen-Probe that you 421 

alluded to when we first started discussing. Gen-Probe had at least an inchoate patent 422 

position. When Tom and Howard formed a partnership first with Dave Kohne, and 423 

then started the company, Dave had some patent applications that related to DNA 424 

hybridization, RNA hybridization for detecting, diagnosing microorganisms, and so 425 

forth. And that technology, I don’t think had been patented when I came to Gen-426 

Probe. It was being handled by Lyon & Lyon outside, Lyon & Lyon also represented 427 

Gen-Probe before I came to Gen-Probe, so I wasn’t disappointed with that, and they 428 

continued to prosecute that case, Doug Olsen and Brad Duft, and ultimately obtained 429 

a patent on it. I know that there has since developed a dispute involving the 430 

University of California as to who owned that technology, but that dispute wasn’t 431 

something that I had any reason, at that time, to believe would have existed. It 432 

emerged after I left Gen-Probe, so I don’t have any information about that, except 433 

what I hear through the grapevine, so to speak, about the basis of what UC’s claim 434 

might have been, but, as far as I was concerned at any rate, Gen-Probe had an 435 

intellectual property basis that I was impressed with, and I think they had some, Dave 436 

Kohne was a brilliant scientist and there were some very, very bright people working 437 

under him, and I was, that played into my calculus. The investors and the board was 438 

made up of some people I had known from Hybritech, like Brook Byers. That was 439 

reassuring, Kleiner- Perkins having had a very successful track record picking 440 

winners. I had great respect for Tom and Howard Birndorf from my Hybritech days. 441 

It was a chance to be an equity player again in a start-up company at a very early 442 

stage of its development, so I was quite, I didn’t have as much internal turmoil over 443 

making the decision to join Gen-Probe as I did at Hybritech. I wasn’t giving up 444 

anything that I wanted that I particularly cherished professionally, in view of the 445 

changes at Hybritech, although again, I have great respect for Eli Lilly, I didn’t have 446 

same trauma about giving up my partnership and lifetime tenure as I said before. So 447 

it was an easy decision to make, and I made it quite easily, actually. 448 

JONES: Was the corporate culture, in a mundane sense -- going to work every day -- 449 

different at Gen-Probe than at Hybritech? 450 
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RESPESS: Yeah, I think it was. I don’t know that I could put it into words, but every 451 

corporation has a different culture. In fact, there were some similar people; it didn’t 452 

mean they brought with them all the same things. A corporate culture, in my view -- I 453 

don’t know if everybody shares this view -- is really the sum total of the way all the 454 

people in the company interact with each other, and since that cast and characters 455 

was substantially different, even though there were some similar players, even the 456 

similar players were in different positions -- Tom Adams was now CEO, and Howard 457 

Birndorf was in a different position, and there was Dave Kohne, who was someone I 458 

had not known before, but Dave had a major role to play in the development of the 459 

corporate culture. All of the other officers except me were people who had never been 460 

at Hybritech, and it was only natural that the company would look different, and 461 

frankly, I don't think there were any great similarities between the two cultures. I 462 

don’t know that any culture could be said to be good or better than another culture, 463 

if the results are good, and I’m inclined to give the benefit of the doubt to the culture 464 

as being a good culture, and if the results are bad, I don’t know that the culture is 465 

always responsible for it, but maybe that was part of the problem. In this particular 466 

case, it was a different culture, but not one that was so different from Hybritech that I 467 

was turned off by it as a result of having joined it. 468 

JONES: And you were involved with the Chugai deal? 469 

RESPESS: I was involved in the Chugai deal where we agreed to develop diagnostic 470 

products with Chugai. I was not involved in the acquisition of Gen-Probe by Chugai. I 471 

had left by then. 472 

JONES: And you left Gen-Probe in ‘87? 473 

RESPESS: Late ‘88? 474 

JONES: So, this is already after Progenx had been founded? 475 

RESPESS: Howard Birndorf had left a year earlier as I believe, and was involved in 476 

Progenx. There were some management changes at Gen-Probe. The company’s stock 477 

had been, the company was not, in my view, doing well financially, and I knew they 478 

were looking for ways to save money at Gen-Probe. And I went to Tom Bologna, and I 479 

said to Tom Bologna, ‘You know, I’m a high-priced item around here. The company is 480 

certainly not on a fast-growth track, right now’ -- you may recall that Gen-Probe 481 

raised money shortly before the big ‘87 stock market debacle. Gen-Probe’s stock was 482 
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way under, as most other companies were, way under where they had been, at the 483 

time they went public, for example, and I saw the company beginning to struggle, 484 

and I didn’t see any need to be a drag on the company. It was not going to be able to 485 

do a lot of things. It wasn’t going to be able to raise money in the public market 486 

again, I didn’t think, in any time frame that was reasonable, and I saw myself as 487 

someone that was expendable, and I was interested again, this time to a certain 488 

extent on my own volition, to move on, and I told Tom Bologna that if he wanted to 489 

make me an offer about leaving the company, I would certainly entertain it. I don’t 490 

recall if he said at that particular meeting, right away, “Sure, that sounds like a good 491 

idea,” but not long thereafter... 492 

[tape ends] 493 

...through what I will call the zaibatsu, a term that you may have heard... 494 

JONES: No. 495 

RESPESS: Zaibatsu, it’s a Japanese term, I think, for the way that Japanese companies 496 

interact. 497 

JONES: Keiretsu? 498 

RESPESS: No, this is called zaibatsu. It may be subtly different, I don’t know, I don’t 499 

speak Japanese obviously, but, in any event, there has been a relationship, particularly 500 

among the Hybritech alumni, and it’s somewhat broader than that, where people 501 

will, when companies are being started, particularly they’ll ask someone who has 502 

experience in another company to sort of help them out, before they sort of build all 503 

the infrastructure, to kind of get things going, and I’d been helping Howard with 504 

some things involving Progenx, so I had some familiarity with Progenx. I’d also 505 

worked with Howard. Howard and I had been good friends by that time, since 1980. 506 

And I was interested in trying a therapeutics company, and Progenx was transitioning 507 

from a diagnostic company based on antibody technology to the company that it is 508 

today, or to the beginnings of the company that it is today, and I was interested in at 509 

least one more start-up in the therapeutic area, as opposed to the diagnostic arena, 510 

and Howard was kind enough to ask me to join Progenx as part of that transition, and 511 

I did. Again, it coincided with my personal interest of leaving, at that time, Gen-512 

Probe, so I guess it proves the point that I was making earlier, at least to my 513 
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satisfaction, that there is this opportunity to move within the biotechnology industry 514 

as a form of job security. 515 

JONES: When you started to think about leaving Gen-Probe, were there other things 516 

you were considering besides Ligand? 517 

RESPESS: Yes, that’s true. I did talk to some other, I’d prefer not to disclose the 518 

things I was talking about, but I talked to at least one other company here locally, 519 

and some companies outside the San Diego area, and a number of law firms had 520 

expressed an interest that if ever I decided to leave the company arena, that they 521 

would like me to be, to let them know because they would like to discuss with me the 522 

possibility of private practice, and I think I picked up the phone to talk to one or two, 523 

just to see if that invitation was still valid, and I think I was satisfied that it was, but 524 

I’d become used to and enjoyed, for the reasons I explained before, working in-house, 525 

so to speak, and so, I never really seriously focused on one of those opportunities. 526 

JONES: And again, this was the same kind of deal, where you got a piece of Ligand 527 

when you went in? 528 

RESPESS: Yes. 529 

JONES: And this is after they had figured out that Henry Niman’s technology wasn’t 530 

going to work, and this was after Howard had talked to Ron Evans? 531 

RESPESS: Yes, remember that I told you that I had, well, my original experience with 532 

Progenx, the investors asked me, this was Kleiner-Perkins, asked me to look at 533 

Henry’s patent portfolio. I did so. An outside patent attorney did so, and I talked to 534 

Henry Niman, and I gave him certain opinions about the patentability of his 535 

technology, and then later, when Howard began to, Progenx was a very small 536 

company, and Howard did not want to pay someone, an outside attorney, well 537 

Howard was certainly willing to pay, but I mean, Howard is a person who watches the 538 

bottom line, and was interested in getting someone to work with him in negotiating 539 

an agreement with the Salk, and in return for that, Howard allowed me to purchase 540 

some preferred stock in Progenx, which I was happy to do, and so I was glad to do 541 

that, and it gave me, and so a result, I helped him in his negotiations with the Salk. 542 

The Salk’s attorney’s wrote the agreements, but I helped Howard negotiate the 543 

technical parts of the agreements. By the technical parts, I mean the legal technical, 544 

the technically legal parts of the agreement with the Salk, and looked at the patent 545 
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portfolio that was being licensed from the Salk, some of that kind of stuff. So, again, I 546 

had knowledge about, I knew Howard, and I’d also been involved to a certain extent 547 

in looking at the technology, and I knew some of the people. Again, the board 548 

personnel, some of the people on the board were people I’d known from both 549 

Hybritech and Gen-Probe, so, as a result, again, I had no particular difficulty making 550 

that, even less difficulty making that transition from the one from Hybritech to Gen-551 

Probe. So, it was an easy thing again. 552 

JONES: OK, let me ask you just one more general question. In terms of licensing 553 

technologies from the Salk or from the university, has there been a big 554 

transformation in that? Have these kinds of institutions become more sophisticated?  555 

Because at the time Hybritech was started, people are passing around, researchers are 556 

passing around myeloma cell lines to anybody who wants it.  557 

RESPESS: The short answer to your question is yes, things have changed, and 558 

institutions have become more sophisticated. Some have done a better job of 559 

becoming sophisticated than others.. I can recall early in the days at the University of 560 

California, when Roger, Roger, the guy who headed the patent department up at 561 

Berkeley, his name may not come to me right away, but Roger had just started up a 562 

small operation there and was out-licensing technology, and it was very important to 563 

Roger, and I don’t think I’m disclosing anything that he would deny now, I believe 564 

this is something that he’s told people, when you sat down with him, they were 565 

interested in getting as much money up front as they could, and they were willing to 566 

negotiate, they weren’t willing to give away, but they were willing to negotiate away 567 

downstream, revenue potential in order to get up front money, because they did not 568 

want to operate that office at a loss. In other words, they wanted to bring in more 569 

revenue than it was costing them to generate these agreements because, as you know, 570 

particularly in the pharmaceutical area, arena, it takes many years to get a product to 571 

market, so they knew that they were not going to get substantial royalties, seven, 572 

eight, nine, ten years, from some of these transactions. So, the negotiations then 573 

tended to be, ‘How much cash can I get up front?’ In those days, they wouldn’t 574 

consider equity participation, I mean that was something that they were not allowed 575 

to do. I just heard a couple of days ago that UC now is prepared to consider taking an 576 

equity position, so  577 

JONES: I think they did, in a joint venture with Boehringer-Mannheim. 578 



Interview conducted by Mark Jones on May 9, 1997 

RESPESS: Could be, so my point. Yes, they’ve become more sophisticated. There was 579 

one time, I think, when as far as they were concerned, all technologies were equal. 580 

You went in there, you know, we get a five percent royalty, we always charge a five 581 

percent royalty, and that’s it. I think that one reason to have a rule like that, or to 582 

express views like that, is because it insulates you from criticism for having done a 583 

bad deal if it doesn’t work out. You know, if my company gets rich, and you guys 584 

don’t make a lot of money, but all technologies are not equal. Some of them are never 585 

going to amount to much, they’re only helpful in bringing products to market. Other 586 

technologies are enormously important, and so forth, and I think that now, the 587 

people who do these sorts of things are much more sophisticated than they used to 588 

be, they’ve been in the arena longer, they’ve seem, they talk to each other more, they 589 

have this association of university technology managers, there’s a licensing executive 590 

society, and there’s a lot of fertilization between organizations. They network each 591 

other and so forth, so I think the whole arena has become more sophisticated, and as 592 

a result, doing transactions, in my view, is somewhat easier, because you don’t have 593 

to come in there and talk to a person who is absolutely obstinate about a point that as 594 

far as you’re concerned makes no business sense, and no matter how much time and 595 

effort you spend, you’ll never talk them into a rational business situation. On the 596 

other hand, you can’t take them for a ride, either. But on balance, I consider it good 597 

for everybody, that this sophistication has evolved within the university- nonprofit 598 

arena. It’s much easier to do deals and talk to people who can negotiate and reach 599 

compromises, and so forth, than it used to be. 600 

END INTERVIEW
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